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Administrative Review  
 
Date:   December 9, 2022 

To:   Jason Plourde, Chair, Zoning Board of Adjustment 

From:  Lincoln Daley, Community Development Director 

Subject:  Case #2022-28 TM Bolduc Holdings, LLC. and Salt Creek Properties, LLC. for the 
property located at Tax Map 43, Lot 69 – Special Exception Application to disturb wetland 
resource areas and wetland buffers. 

The applicants are before the Board of Adjustment seeking a Special Exception from the Milford Zoning 
Ordinance, Article VI, Sections 6.02.6 and 6.02.7 to disturb approximately 6,676 square feet of wetlands area and 
21,699  square feet of wetland buffer area to allow the construction of interior roadways for a multi-family 
development on a property located in the Limited Commercial-Business District “LCB’ Zoning District and 
Commercial ‘C’ Zoning District.  In reviewing the files for this property, I offer the following comments: 

1. Existing Conditions: 

a. The subject property is approximately 61 acres with 900 linear feet of frontage on Stoneyard Drive and 90 
feet Ponemah Hill Road.  The property is undeveloped.  

b. The subject property is situated an established mixed use area.  To the north, southeast, and east, the 
subject property abut single- and multi-family uses and vacant land.  To the west and southwest, the 
property abuts commercial uses on Hammond Road and vacant land. 

c. The property is bisected by the Commercial Zoning District to the west and the Limited Commercial 
Business District to east.  

2. On August 18, 2022, the Board of Adjustment had previously granted a Special Exception from the Milford 
Zoning Ordinance, Article V, Section 5.05.8.C and 5.07.7.C to allow the construction of four (4) multi-family 
residential  buildings as shown on the plan entitled “Existing Conditions, The Q At Milford, Map 43 Lot 69, 0 
Ponemah Hill Road, Milford, New Hampshire, Hillsborough County”, dated 4/11/22, by Keach-Nordstrom 
Associates, Inc. and labeled as Buildings B, C, D, and E with a maximum height of 56 feet where 40 feet is 
permitted in the Commercial ‘C’ Zoning District for the property located at Tax Map 43, Lot 69.   

3. On December 8, 2022, the applicant appeared before the Milford Conservation Commission to present the 
proposal and receive input and comments. Attached please find the December 9, 2022 Commission 
Memorandum to the Board of Adjustment for your review and consideration. 

4. The proposal calls for the construction of six (6) residential, multi-family buildings and the related access 
roadways and parking facilities. In order to create/construct said project roadways, this requires the 
disturbance of approximately 6,676 square feet of wetlands area and 21,699  square feet of wetland buffer 
area. See attached plan.  The applicant states that the plan proposed utilizes existing trails and pathways from 
the property’s historic use in order to minimize wetland and wetland buffer impacts. 



  

5. The disturbance of wetland and wetland buffer areas are permitted by Special Exception pursuant to Section 
6.02.6. so long as the applicant, pursuant to Section 6.02.7.A, demonstrates by plan or example that the 
following factors have been considered in their design:  

1. The need for the proposed project;  

2. The plan proposed is the alternative with the least impact to the wetlands, surface waters and/or their 
associated buffers;  

3. The impact on plants, fish and wildlife; 

4. The impact on the quantity and/or quality of surface and ground water;  

5. The potential to cause or increase flooding, erosion, or sedimentation;  

6. The cumulative impact that would result if all parties owning or abutting a portion of the affected 
wetland, wetland complex and/or buffer area were also permitted alterations to the wetland and buffer 
proportional to the extent of their property rights;  

7. The impact of the proposed project on the values and functions of the total wetland or wetland 
complex. 

Included in their application, the applicant has provided responses to each of the criteria.  See attached.  

6. Staff Comments: 

a. The applicant should explain what alternatives designs and or layouts of the proposed roadways were 
considered.  

b. What is the anticipated/proposed roadway width? Please clarify if the proposed roadway designs/layout 
include pedestrian amenities such as sidewalks and/or bike lanes? The final roadway width may impact 
the total area of wetland and wetland buffer disturbance. 

c. In addition to requiring a Special Exception, the project will also require approval by the Planning Board 
for a major site plan application and subdivision application. It is recommended that the Board request 
formal input from the Planning Board.   

d. In addition to local permitting, the project will require both a Wetlands Permit and Alteration of Terrain 
Permit from NHDES. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

Aerial Photos of Subject Property: 
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December 9, 2022 
 
To: Zoning Board of Adjustment 
 
Re: Case # 2022 - 28 
Wetland Buffer Impacts  
Special Exception for ZO 6.02.6.B 
 
 
To the Board, 

The Conservation Commission met with the applicant at the December 8, 2022 meeting.  The 
members had some questions and comments which are listed below.   

Criteria for Evaluation with MCC comments italicized 

1. The need for the impact.  This roadway is necessary for access to the subdivision. The large 
number of new homes will trigger thoughtful consideration of alternative pedestrian walkways 
to promote a safe and healthy living space. 

2. The plan is the least impact to the site.  This roadway is placed where the impact will be kept 
as small as possible; primarily using existing woods roads. 

3. The impact on plants, fish and wildlife.  There is an existing woods road which is being 
utilized.  The impact will be small and avoids the adjacent wetlands as much as possible.  
This site is impacted from previous quarry operations. 

4. The impact on the quantity and quality of surface and ground water.  There will be reduced 
permeable surface due to the hardened surface of the roadway.  There are eco-friendly 
designs which should be used to mitigate this impact. 

5. The potential to cause or increase flooding, erosion or sedimentation.  A stormwater 
management plan hasn’t been completed.  Following best management practices, there 
should be no increased potential for flooding, erosion or sedimentation.  

6. The cumulative impact if all parties abutting this wetland or buffer were permitted to make 
equivalent alterations to the wetland and buffer proportional to the extent of their property 
rights. The cumulative impact to the wetland complex on this parcel of these new house lots 
will be noticeable and will require adaptation by wildlife and plants.  The functionality of the 
wetlands and their buffers will be protected.  The restoration plans indicate that the wetland 

http://www.milford.nh.gov/


and buffer functionality will be protected, and perhaps, improved. If abutters were to have the 
same impact intensity, a larger piece of the landscape will be altered.   

7. The impact of the proposed project on the values and functions of the total wetland or 
wetland complex.  The stormwater management plan, which hasn’t been completed,  will 
probably utilize some of the existing wetlands.  The plans included in the Special Exception 
Application include restoration practices that intend to restore or augment the wetland and 
buffer functionality. 

MCC questions with answers provided from the applicant’s engineer. 

1. In the notes accompanying the insert graphics for each wetland and buffer impact, there were a 
couple of references to other town’s design standards. The Engineer made a note to change the 
references to Milford.  

2. Restoration notes # 6, the MCC requested that a native wetland seed mix be used in the buffer 
stabilization specifications. 

3. Wetland restoration Notes #3 references a completion report will be sent to NHDES. The MCC 
requested, and the Engineer is agreed, that a copy of the report will be sent to the Commission. 

4. The MCC is pleased to see the restoration plan includes natural regeneration from existing soils 
which will be set aside and maintained on site.   

 

Very Respectfully, 

 

Chris Costantino 
Milford Conservation Commission 
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